2006-2007 Undergraduate Calendar

The information published in this Undergraduate Calendar outlines the rules, regulations, curricula, programs and fees for the 2006-2007 academic year, including the Summer Semester 2006, the Fall Semester 2006 and the Winter Semester 2007. For your convenience the Undergraduate Calendar is available in PDF format.

If you wish to link to the Undergraduate Calendar please refer to the Linking Guidelines.

The University is a full member of:

• The Association of Universities and Colleges of Canada

Contact Information:



University of Guelph Guelph, Ontario, Canada N1G 2W1 519-824-4120 http://www.uoguelph.ca

	map.// www.uogucipmeu	
Revision Information:		
Fe	bruary 1, 2006	Initial Publication
Ma	arch 14, 2006	Second Publication
Αι	ugust 22, 2006	Third Publication
Jaı	nuary 23, 2007	Fourth Publication



Disclaimer

University of Guelph 2006

The information published in this Undergraduate Calendar outlines the rules, regulations, curricula, programs and fees for the 2006-2007 academic year, including the Summer Semester 2006, the Fall Semester 2006 and the Winter Semester 2007.

The University reserves the right to change without notice any information contained in this calendar, including any rule or regulation pertaining to the standards for admission to, the requirements for the continuation of study in, and the requirements for the granting of degrees or diplomas in any or all of its programs. The publication of information in this calendar does not bind the University to the provision of courses, programs, schedules of studies, or facilities as listed herein.

The University will not be liable for any interruption in, or cancellation of, any academic activities as set forth in this calendar and related information where such interruption is caused by fire, strike, lock-out, inability to procure materials or trades, restrictive laws or governmental regulations, actions taken by faculty, staff or students of the University or by others, civil unrest or disobedience, or any other cause of any kind beyond the reasonable control of the University.

In the event of a discrepancy between a print version (downloaded) and the Web version, the Web version will apply,

Published by: Undergraduate Program Services Editor: A.H. Goody, Associate Registrar

Assistant Editor: S.Holley, Program Co-ordinator

Table of Contents

Table of Contents

I. Schedule of Fees	22
Changes in Fee Schedule	
Meal Plan Fees	
Parking Fees	
Prior Learning Assessment	
Refunds	
Residence Fees	23
Special University Fees	23
University Fees	24
Tuition Fees	
Other University Fees	25
Student Organization Fees	

VI. Schedule of Fees

VI. Schedule of Fees

All fees for a semester are due and payable on or before the date scheduled for registration for that semester.

Provisional registration may be granted to students who make arrangements with the Associate Registrar, Student Financial Services, to defer payment of their University account. Deferred payment normally will be granted only to students who can show proof of financial assistance from O.S.A.P. or other awards which can be confirmed by the University and are not on hand at the commencement of classes through no fault of the student. Students should apply for O.S.A.P. two months in advance of the first class day of each semester, in order that the application can be processed in time to have funds for registration. Cancellation of registration may be exercised at the discretion of the University for failure to complete the registration payment. Registration will be cancelled for students who have not paid or made satisfactory arrangement for payment by the 10th class day for the semester. There is a \$200.00 reinstatement fee levied for full-time students and \$100 reinstatement fee levied for part-time students wishing to register after the 10th class day. Reinstatement will not be allowed after October 15th for the Fall semester, January 31st for the Winter semester and June 15th for the Summer semester.

Fall Semester Only - Minimum Registration Deposit

ALL students are required to make the **minimum**, **compulsory**, **non-refundable Registration Deposit** of \$200.00 prior to the beginning of the Fall semester (please refer to the Student Financial Services website Tuition & Fees Announcement. Payment of this deposit by the deadline date will ensure that the courses selected for the Fall term will be retained. There are no exemptions from the payment of this deposit irrespective of current account balance or funding to come in the future. This condition may be waived on a case by case basis under extenuating circumstances, e.g. medical or compassionate grounds with documentation

Academic sanction may be applied to students who have not made payment, or suitable arrangements for payment, of their University account. Academic sanction will prevent one or more of the following:

- a. release of semester examination results
- b. release of transcripts
- c. granting of a degree or diploma
- d. registration for a subsequent semester

Changes in Fee Schedule

The University reserves the right to make changes in the published schedule of fees and payment dates and also to assess charges, which are not included in the schedule of fees, for course material and/or transportation provided at University expense.

Meal Plan Fees

The Department of Hospitality Services Meal Plan fees quoted below are the 2005-2006 figures. The updated fees for 2006-2007 will be available by the end of April, 2006 via the Hospitality Services website: http://www.hospitality.uoguelph.ca/mealplans.htm.

The On-Campus Meal Plan is a mandatory meal plan for all students living in a traditional residence and optional for students living in the East Residence, the East Village Townhouses or off campus. The On-Campus Meal Plan is designed to cover both the Fall and Winter semesters. Hospitality Services offers four (4) different sizes of plans to accommodate a variety of eating habits. Each On-Campus Meal Plan is composed of 2 Plans in 1 - *The Basic Plan and the Flex Plan*.

The Basic Plan is used for all on-campus food purchases. These purchases are tax exempt when applicable.

The Flex Plan is used for vending machines, dining at select off-campus restaurants and delivery orders for pizza, subs and pitas. These purchases are taxable.

At the end of the Winter semester, so long as you are a University of Guelph student, Food Dollars remaining in your On-Campus Meal Plan will be carried forward to the Ultra Food Plan. The Ultra Food Plan is a convenient, money saving meal plan designed for those students who are not required to purchase an On-Campus Meal Plan.

Size	Basic Plan	+	Flex Plan	Total Cost	Per Semester
Minimum Plan	2,230	+	400	\$2,630	\$1,315.00
Light Plan	2,470	+	600	\$3,070	\$1,535.00
Full Plan	2,650	+	800	\$3,450	\$1,725.00
Plus Plan	2,790	+	1,000	\$3,790	\$1,895.00

For more information on Hospitality's meal plans visit the Hospitality Services website http://www.hospitality.uoguelph.ca/mealplans.htm.

Parking Fees

Quoted fees are in effect in 2005-2006. The 2006-2007 fee schedule will be issued as soon as available from Parking Services.

Per Semester		Annual Rate
Students in residence	N/A	\$210.64

Students off-campus	\$107.65	\$322.98
Motorcycle	N/A	\$54.59

Above rates are subject to change.

Prior Learning Assessment

Application Fee A fee will be charged for each application to challenge a course, irrespective of the number of courses specified in the application.	\$50.00
Course Fee Students who are permitted to challenge a course will be charged a fee for the course, regardless of whether or not the challenge is successful.	1/2 of the tuition fee for the course

Refunds

Withdrawal

A student who makes a request for Withdrawal from the University may apply to the Office of Registrarial Services for a refund of tuition fees provided the hiatus has been authorized (see also Withdrawal, Section VIII--Undergraduate Degree Regulations).

If the withdrawal or credit drop results in a credit balance in your fees account (i.e. payments are greater than charges) a refund cheque is produced. Allow four to six weeks before refunds are available from Student Financial Services. The University has been directed by the Ministry of Training, Colleges and Universities to return refunds to the National Student Loan Centre in instances where assistance was received through a Government Student Loan.

Winter and Summer Semesters - Refunds of tuition fees will be calculated according to the effective date and the following schedule:

Class Days	Refund Rate
1 - 5 inclusive	100%
6 - 10 inclusive	75%
11 - 15 inclusive	65%
16 - 20 inclusive	50%
21 - 25 inclusive	35%
26 - 30 inclusive	20%
31 and beyond	nil

 $\underline{Fall\ Semester}\ -\ The\ compulsory\ non-refundable\ Registration\ Deposit\ of\ \$200.00\ is$ for feited as the first charge against a withdrawal/cancellation or no show for the semester including the first five class days. The above schedule will only come into effect once the first \$200.00 penalty has been used up.

Refunds of Other University Fees (except Residence and Meal Plan Fees) and Student Organization Fees (except Bus Pass, medical insurance premium and dental insurance premium, please see specific details on these fees) will be made in full up to and including the 15th class day of a semester. No refund of Other University Fees or Student Organization Fees will be made after the 15th class day. The effective date for the refund of tuition and fees will be the date on which the student notifies the Office of Registrarial Services regarding the withdrawal.

A registration payment not honoured by your bank does not constitute an official withdrawal from the University.

Room charges will be refunded on a pro rata basis for the period in residence, but cancellation of the residence contract will also result in forfeiture of all or part of the residence deposit. Refer to section 4.3 of the Residence Contract Terms & Conditions for further information. The effective date for refund will be the date belongings are removed from the room, a room check made and the room key, post office key and university ID card returned; or, the authorized effective date for withdrawal, whichever is later. Students to whom a room assignment has been made and who withdraw and subsequently re-register up to and including the 5th class day will be liable for any penalties incurred through forfeiture of the residence contract.

Meal plan fees, excluding the Capital Fund Component, will be refunded on a pro rata basis for the operating expense portion, plus the unused food portion, for authorized cancellation of a contract. The effective date for refunds will be the date on which the student notifies the Office of Registrarial Services regarding the withdrawal, except if a student withdraws before or after the first day of classes and re-registers before or on the 5th day of classes, cancellation of the contract is not permitted.

Bus Pass Fee

This fee is not refundable unless a student withdraws from the university within the first five class days of the semester. Please direct inquiries to the C.S.A. office.

VI. Schedule of Fees, Residence Fees

Classification Changes

Refunds of tuition fees for students changing from full-time to part-time will be calculated on the difference of tuition values at the same rates as shown above for tuition for withdrawals. Refunds of Other University Fees and Student Organization Fees (except Bus Pass, Dental Insurance premium and medical insurance premium) will be made in full up to and including the 15th class day of a semester. No refunds of Other University Fees and Student Organization Fees will be made after the 15th class day. The effective date for classification change will be the date such change is reported to the Office of Registrarial Services.

Co-operative Education

Students must see the Policy Agreement for Student Involvement in Co-operative Education for withdrawal policies. If a student withdraws from co-op within the first 15 days of an Academic Semester, the student will receive a full refund of the co-op fee. Withdrawals after the 15th class day will not be eligible for a fee refund. Students who withdraw or are required to withdraw from a co-operative education program after accepting their second work term will be required to pay all remaining fees.

Dental Insurance Premium

The Dental Plan has an opt-out option. Please contact the Central Student Association office for the opt-out deadline. The fee is not refundable past the deadline.

Dropped Courses

Refunds of tuition fees for courses dropped by **part-time** students will be calculated at the same rates as shown above for tuition for withdrawals. The effective date for the drop action will be the date such information is reported to the Office of Registrarial Services.

Equipment Fund for D.V.M. Students

The Equipment Fund Fee is refundable during the first 15 class days of the semester to those who do not wish to support the fund. Applications for refund are to be made at the office of the Assistant Dean O.V.C. Refunds and receipts for donations will be remitted before the end of the fall semester.

Equipment Fund for Engineering Students

The Equipment Fund Fee is refundable during the first 15 class days of the semester to those who do not wish to support the fund. Applications for refund are to be made to the School of Engineering.

Medical Insurance Premium

This premium is not refundable unless a student withdraws from the university within the first five class days of the semester. Please direct inquiries to the C.S.A. office.

Student Society Fee for Landscape Architecture Students

Please refer to the Student Society for refund information.

Optional Fees

OPIRG-G is refundable during the first 3 weeks of each semester to those who do not wish to support its activities. Refer to General Information Section of this Calendar. Applications for refund are to be made at the OPIRG-G offices. RADIO GRYPHON fee is refundable during the first 3 weeks of each semester to those who do not wish to support the activities. Applications for refund are to be made at the Radio Gryphon offices.

Food Bank Affordable Housing, must approach the CSA office for refund.

Session Courses

In addition to the refund schedule quoted above, there will be a flat fee levied for each session course dropped after the first week of the course. The financial penalty is approximately double the regular course rate penalty.

Residence Fees

Quoted fees are in effect in 2005-2006. The 2006-2007 fee schedule will be issued as soon as available from Student Housing Services.

Single Student Residence

Fall & Winter Semesters (two semester contract, per semester price)

Single room	\$2,160.00
Double room	\$1,965.00
Single room (suite with shared cooking facilities)	\$2,306.00
Double room (suite with shared cooking facilities)	\$2,109.00
East Townhouse (includes Utility deposit)	\$2,549.00

Summer Semester (one semester contract)

Single room (East townhouse)	\$2,000.00
------------------------------	------------

Other Residence Fees

Activity fee	\$16.24

D.V.M. and Graduate Students in Single Student Residence

Due to the longer D.V.M. winter semester, an increased winter residence rate is applicable to D.V.M. students. Similarly, an increased rate is applicable to graduate students who must remain in residence after the end of the regular winter semester. Students will be informed of the applicable dates, deadlines and charges late in the fall semester or early in the winter semester. A semester for residence purposes will terminate on the residence closing date indicated in the current Residence Contract. Section 6.2.8 of the Residence Contract requires that students vacate their rooms within 24 hours of completion of their final examination. Rates are for unfurnished units and include utilities (except telephone), parking, and satellite TV.

Family Housing

Family Housing Fee	Per Month
1 bedroom apartment	\$748.00 - \$792.00
2 bedroom apartment	\$868.00
2 bedroom townhouse - College Ave.	\$915.00
2 bedroom townhouse - Wellington Woods	\$915.00

Special University Fees

The following Special University Fees are charged on a user-fee basis as outlined below:

Account Deferral Fee	\$60.00 per occurrence
B.L.A. Student Society Fee	\$50.00 per semester
Cheque Refusal Fee For each cheque upon which payment is refused by the bank on which it is drawn.	\$60.00 per cheque in the amount of \$418.00 or greater upon which payment is refused (\$30.00 per cheque in the amount of less than \$418.00).
Cheque Processing Fee Applied to students receiving short term loans or OSAP advances.	\$20.00 per occurrence
Distance Education Resource Fee Non-refundable after the six-day add period.	\$70.00 per D.E. course
Equipment Fund for D.V.M. Charged to semester 1,3,5,7 students	\$50.00
Equipment Fund for B.SC. (ENG.) Charged per full-time semester	\$40.00
Graduation Fee Payable at time of submission of application for graduation. The fee covers the cost of the diploma and diploma case, and gown rental. It is applicable to all students (except those in continuing, unclassified or non degree categories) upon their first registration in the semester level as noted below: Associate Diploma in Agriculture (semester 4) All other Programs (semester 8)	\$30.00
Late Graduation Fee Payable at time of submission of a late application for graduation.	\$60.00
Late Registration Fee Payable at the time of late registration (fee payment). Appeals against the late fee must be made in writing to the Secretary of the Late Appeals Committee within 10 class days from the commencement of classes. Appeal forms are available from WebAdvisor.	\$60.00 per occurrence
Official Transcript	\$8.00 each copy
OAC Lab Fee	\$25.00 per semester
Program Transfer Fee For each applicant requesting a transfer from one degree program to another, or readmission.	\$40.00 per occurrence

Registration Reinstatement Fee Registration will be cancelled for students who have not paid or made satisfactory arrangement for payment by the 10 th class day for the semester. There is a \$200.00 reinstatement fee levied for full-time students and a \$100.00 reinstatement fee levied for part-time students wishing to register after the 10 th class day. Reinstatement will not be allowed after October 15 th for the Fall semester, January 31 st for the Winter semester and June 15th for the Summer semester.	\$100.00 per occurrence for part-time students
Supplemental Privilege Students who write supplemental examinations at an outside centre may be required to pay an invigilator fee directly to that centre. Notification of non-payment will result in the withholding of grades.	\$50.00 per occurrence

Note: If the student pays the fee for the supplemental privilege and subsequently chooses not to write it, a refund will be made if the request is submitted in writing at least 15 days prior to the scheduled date of the supplemental to Undergraduate Programs Services, Office of Registrarial Services. *No refunds will be made for fees paid for examinations which were to be written at another university or college under the direction of the student.*

University Fees

Tuition Fees

The undermentioned rates are those in effect until April 30, 2006. At the time of printing the 2006-2007 fee schedule had not been determined. The undermentioned tuition fees apply to Canadian students and those with permanent resident status. Students from outside of Canada, who do not have permanent resident status, should consult Visa Student Fees, in this section.

Note: For tuition fees for the University of Guelph-Humber please check the University of Guelph-Humber website at http://www.guelphhumber.ca/.

Note: *Special or Non-degree* **full-time students** pay the same tuition fee per program as indicated by programs for regular full-time students.

Full-Time Fees - 2.00 credits or more

Program	Semester Fee
Bachelor of Applied Science	\$2,092.00
Bachelor of Arts	\$2,092.00
Bachelor of Arts and Science	\$2,092.00
Bachelor of Commerce	\$2,092.00
Bachelor of Computing	\$2,092.00
Bachelor of Landscape Architecture	\$2,272.00
Bachelor of Science	\$2,092.00
Bachelor of Science in Agriculture	\$2,092.00
Bachelor of Science in Engineering	\$2,272.00
Bachelor of Science in Environmental Sciences	\$2,092.00
Bachelor of Science in Technology	\$2,092.00
Doctor of Veterinary Medicine	\$2,272.00
General Studies	\$2,092.00

Part-Time Fees - less than 2.00 credits

	Fee per 0.50 Credit
Tuition fee	\$418.00
Central Student Association fee	\$5.57
Student Service fee	\$8.55
University Centre fee	\$2.34
Women's Resource Centre	\$0.50
	Fee per Semester
Aboriginal Student Association	\$0.26
Affordable Housing	\$0.91
First Team Response	\$0.61
Food Bank	\$1.15
G.S.A.P.	\$3.20
Guelphbooks.com/Thecannon.ca	\$1.07

Guelph Students for Environment Change	\$0.15
Munford Centre	\$0.25
OUTLine	\$0.40
Part-time athletic fee	\$35.49
Part-time athletic building fee	\$16.00
Science for Peace	\$0.12
Student Health Service fee	\$9.68
Student bus pass	\$55.19
W.U.S.C.	\$0.82
	Annual Fee
Medical Insurance Premium	\$100.00
Dental Plan	\$112.00
Sign Club (Fall semester only)	\$0.26

Audit Fees

Registration fee per audited course	\$260.00

Visa Student Fees

The tuition fee for students from outside of Canada who have obtained a student authorization and visa is as shown below:

Program	Full-time Semester Fee	Part-time Fee (per 0.50 credit)
B.A., B.A.S., B.A.SC., B.COMM., B.COMP., B.SC., B.SC. (AGR.), B.SC. (ENV.), B.SC. (TECH.), General Studies	\$4,865.00	\$974.50
B.L.A., B.SC. (ENG.)	\$6,994.00	\$1,399.00
D.V.M.	\$22,551.50	\$4,510.30

Health Insurance for International Students

All international students registered at the University of Guelph are required to enrol in the University Health Insurance Plan (UHIP) - participation is compulsory. The 2005-2006 fees are:

	Visa Per Year	Visa/Exchange Per Semester
Single coverage	\$528.00	\$176.00
Two-person coverage	\$1,056.00	\$352.00
Family coverage	\$1,584.00	\$528.00

Students who are studying on student visas and whose immigration status changes, or those who may be eligible for the regular tuition fees but are charged the visa student fees, must present acceptable official documentation to Undergraduate Program Services, Office of Registrarial Services. To effect a change of fees in a particular semester, the documentation must be presented prior to June 30 (Summer Semester), November 1 (Fall Semester), or February 1 (Winter Semester).

Categories of students who are exempt from paying the visa student fee are synopsized as follows:

- Canadian citizens, permanent residents, or their dependents.
- applicants for permanent residency who submit the appropriate letter.
- diplomatic or consular officers of another country or representatives of the United Nations or its agencies who are stationed in Canada, or their dependents.
- visitors, or their dependents, who are in Canada on an employment authorization.
- refugees (officially recognized).
- members of foreign military forces admitted to Canada under the Visiting Forces Act, and their dependents.

The descriptions above are brief statements synopsized from the regulations of the Ministry of Training, Colleges and Universities. Final interpretation rests with the Office of Registrarial Services and documentation must be acceptable to the Office of Registrarial Services. The regulations are subject to change without notice.

Other Tuition and Incidental Fees

Co-operative Education

	Fee per Semester
Academic Semesters (maximum of 8)	\$200.00
Work Semesters	\$200.00
	Annual Fee
Dental Plan Premium*	\$112.00

Medical Insurance Premium* \$100.00

Note: Students who withdraw or are required to withdraw from the co-op program after accepting their second work term offer of employment will be required to pay all remaining co-op fees.

Exchange Program

Guelph students attending other institutions are required to pay the University of Guelph the cost of **full-time** tuition and compulsory fees (less the Bus Pass fee). These students are assessed a \$75.00 Administration Fee.

Foreign students attending the University of Guelph are required to pay the University Health Insurance premiums shown below (UHIP) as well as the medical insurance premium, and Bus Pass fee.

Semester Abroad Program

Students are required to pay **full-time** tuition plus the compulsory medical insurance premium and dental plan premium.

Senior Citizens (Canadian Citizens & Permanent Residents only)

Senior citizens, aged 65 years and over as of the first day of the month in which registration for a semester occurs, who are admitted for registration, will be exempt from the payment of tuition, student organization and other fees, with the exception of material costs required for Fine Art and Distance Education courses.

Summer Semester and Summer Session

For classification purposes, any combination of Summer Semester credits (13 week) and Summer Session credits (6 week) that total 2.00 credits or more will constitute **full-time** enrolment and tuition and other university fees will be charged accordingly.

Other University Fees

These fees are applicable to students registered in 2.00 or more credits. They are compulsory and non refundable.

Athletic building fee	\$32.00
Athletic fee	\$77.33
Student health service fee	\$22.08
University centre fee*	\$11.75
Student support service fee	\$42.76
Total other university fees	\$185.92

^{*}The University Centre Fee is payable at \$11.75 per semester to a total of \$23.50 for each 12 month period commencing with the Summer Semester. Part-time students are charged \$2.34 per 0.50 credit.

Student Organization Fees

Applicable to students registered in 2.00 credits or more. These fees, determined by programs, are collected as a service to the student government to support student organizations, distributed as follows:

Affordable Housing	\$0.91
Aboriginal Student Association	\$0.26
Canadian Federation of Students	\$3.66
Carousel	\$0.50
Entertainment Media fee	\$5.11
First Response Team	\$0.61
Food Bank	\$1.15
G.S.A.P.	\$3.20
Guelph Queer Equality	\$0.22
Guelphbooks.com/Thecannon.ca	\$1.07
Guelph Students for Environment Change	\$0.15
G-OPIRG	\$5.60
International Student Organization	\$1.01
Munford Centre	\$0.25
O.C.U.S.	\$0.50
Ontario Federation of Students	\$3.05
Ontarion	\$2.48
OUTLine	\$0.40
Peak Newspaper	\$1.29
Radio Gryphon	\$6.10
Science for Peace	\$0.12

Sign Club (Fall semester only)	\$0.26
Student Bus Pass	\$55.19
University of Guelph Central Student Association	\$13.49
Volunteer Connections	\$1.33
Women's Resource Centre	\$2.64
W.U.S.C.	\$0.82

In addition, the Dental Plan annual premium of \$112.00 and the Medical Insurance Premium of \$100.00 provide coverage for the duration of the semester, whether or not the student withdraws from the University. Married students wishing to have their spouse and/or children insured and students who marry during the semester must apply within 30 days of registration or marriage respectively. See the Central Student Association, UC Level 2 (Room 274). Please refer to your C.S.A. or G.S.A handbook for more details with respect to your student Health Plan.

Colleges Semester Fee

Arts	\$8.00
Biological Science	\$8.50
Physical Science	\$8.00
Physical Science (Engineering)	\$12.00
Ontario Agricultural College	\$10.00
Ontario Veterinary College	\$10.00
Social and Applied Human Sciences	\$6.00